
























































 

Page 1 of 5 

TOWN OF MILTON DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 1 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 2 

Thursday, June 25, 2015 3 

Municipal Building Community Room 4 

43 Bombardier Road  Milton, VT 05468 5 

802.893.1186   www.miltonvt.org 6 

 7 

Members Present: Bruce Jenkins, Vice-Chair & Acting Chair; Thomas Cole, Clerk; David 8 

Conley; Henry Bonges; and Clayton Forgan. 9 

Members Absent:  None. 10 

Staff Present: Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director; and Amanda Pitts, Zoning Administrator.  11 

Others Present:  Please see the attached file.  12 

 13 

CALL TO ORDER 14 

Mr. Jenkins called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 15 

 16 

ADDITIONS TO/DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA 17 

None. 18 

 19 

PUBLIC FORUM 20 

None. 21 

 22 

PUBLIC HEARINGS ON APPLICATIONS 23 

 24 

The DRB opened the following hearing at 7:02 p.m. 25 

 26 

 Variance Application – Green Field Way – Green Field Homeowners Inc., 27 

Owners/Applicants. The Applicants requested a one-year Variance according to Section 1020 28 

and 1070 of the Zoning Regulations in order to be able to construct and formalize dwelling unit 29 

egress and HVAC structures restricted by the Regulations and the 2009 DRB Final Plan & Site 30 

Plan Decision and Plat for the Type "A" Planned Residential Development.  The Plat restricts the 31 

placement of "structures" outside of the defined "building envelopes" (subsequently redefined as 32 

"buildable envelopes") and within a designated common area, "open space", "buffer strip" (within 33 

which no "structures" other than fences may be placed) according to the Sections 844.3, 844.7(a) 34 

and 1010 of the March 26, 2007 Regulations (active at the time of approval), as well as Sections 35 

856, 856.3(a) and 1110 of the (current) January 5, 2015, Regulations . The subject development is 36 

located at Green Field Way, described as SPAN #10148, Tax Map 25, Parcel 1. The subject 37 

property contains a total of approximately 1.92 acres and is located within the “Checkerberry "M4" 38 

Zoning District. 39 

 40 

Mr. Jenkins administered the oath to Interested Persons and asked if there were any objections to 41 

reading through the numbered items. 42 

 43 

Hemmerick noted a mistake in the Staff Report on page two, in the last sentence of the last 44 

paragraph of the background section. He said that a "not" was omitted and the sentence should 45 

read, "This does not, however, provide a basis for increasing non-conformities, which (in this 46 

case) must undergo variance review."   47 

 48 

Jay Nadeau, Greenfield Way Homeowners Association President, represented the Applicant at the 49 

hearing. 50 



 

Page 2 of 5 

 51 

 52 

 53 

In response to item number: 54 

1. Nadeau agreed the Final Site Plans shall show all existing and proposed dwelling unit 55 

ingress/egress and HVAC structures; new structures shall be sized with the minimum 56 

dimensions necessary to safely provide reasonable egress from the porches and no 57 

patios may be installed.  58 

 59 

Conley asked how high the deck is from the ground.  Nadeau answered that the decks/porches 60 

have varying elevations (approximately 3 to 9 feet), and that some units already have stairway 61 

egress from their porches.  Nadeau said that he, personally, is not interested in constructing 62 

steps, while other residents of the 12-unit development are. 63 

 64 

2. Nadeau agreed a Zoning Permit is required and an associated Certificate of 65 

Occupancy/Compliance is required after construction is complete (and prior to 66 

occupation/use of the new structures).   67 

3. Nadeau agreed that a variance approval expired one year from the date of issue.  If the 68 

work has not been completed, the applicant shall apply to the Zoning Administrator for an 69 

extension.  The Zoning Administrator may grant a single one-year extension for the 70 

identical project only." 71 

4. Nadeau agreed to submit 1 full-sized (to scale) and 3 reduced (11 x 17) complete final 72 

plan sets depicting the requested changes; the revised plans shall be deemed Final by 73 

the Town Planner prior to being eligible for a Zoning Permit from the Zoning 74 

Administrator.  Nadeau further agreed to submit ONE electronic or paper plan set for 75 

Staff review prior to submitting all the copies of the Final Plan sets.   76 

 77 

Conley asked Nadeau how many stairways they proposed to add.  Nadeau summarized the 78 

situation.  He said that the unit owners were misled by the developer, who gave them the 79 

understanding that they could put stairs in.  Nadeau explained that many or several units were 80 

constructed with steps or stairs, which were given Certificates of Occupancy by the Town, but 81 

recently one of the unit owners went to the Town to request permission to build stairs off his 82 

unit, and it was found that it could not be permitted because it was outside of the building 83 

envelope. Nadeau further explained that there are already structures that are outside the 84 

building envelope that were given Certificates of Occupancy by the Town, such as the egress 85 

windows and some of the stairs already on the units. Nadeau explained that some units desire 86 

egress steps coming off their porches, but not all.  87 

 88 

Cole confirmed that the variance is only good for a year, and Nadeau stated that the unit owners 89 

are aware of the time limitation.  The DRB and Staff discussed the logistics of the permitting and 90 

Final Plans if approved.  Hemmerick explained that, if approved, the proposed improvements 91 

would be subject to a Zoning Permit within the allotted time-frame and the layout would have to 92 

be shown on the plans. 93 

 94 

Susan Santerre, an adjoining property owner to the west, expressed frustration about the 95 

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance made by the Town, and had concerns about structures 96 

that are already too close to her property.  She requested that the DRB conduct a site visit to 97 

better understand the layout of the property, and she objected to the Applicant's position that 98 

the past mistakes are not a basis to further vary from the approval and Regulations. 99 

 100 



 

Page 3 of 5 

Conley asked how close the structures would be to the lot boundary, which Hemmerick said 101 

would depend on the design of the stairways.  The Board and Nadeau discussed design 102 

alternatives. Conley asked if the layouts could be staked out to see at a site visit, and 103 

Hemmerick further added that there are no drawings of the existing or proposed non-104 

conformities.  Santerre expressed concern about further buffer strip encroachment, and stated 105 

that she went through this before, as the development was first proposed.  She noted that they 106 

built where they shouldn't have built and that it is unreasonable that Applicant wants to extend 107 

that further. 108 

 109 

Nadeau agreed that he can mark out the boundary lines and get a better idea of who is 110 

interested in putting in new structures. 111 

 112 

Hemmerick said the next meeting is Thursday, July 9th and there is time to do both a site visit 113 

and a continued hearing.   The Board agreed that they would like to see the drawings to better 114 

understand the scope of existing and proposed encroachments which a variance, if approved, 115 

would formalize/allow. 116 

 117 

MOTION by David Conley, SECOND by Clayton Forgan to continue the Variance Type A 118 

Residential Planned Unit Development hearing to July 9, 2015 with a site visit to be conducted 119 

prior to the hearing at 6:00 p.m.  DISCUSSION: None. VOTE: Jenkins: yea; Cole: yea; Forgan; 120 

yea, Mr. Conley: yea; Bonges, yea.  PASSED. 121 

 122 

The hearing was closed at 7:20 p.m.  123 

 124 

Site Plan Application - 32 Catamount Drive - Rennline Inc., Applicant/PEJ LLC, Owner 125 

The Applicant seeks Site Plan approval per the Milton Zoning Regulations to shift an internal 126 

circulation drive, stormwater area, and dumpster pad to accommodate a 3,000 sq. ft. light 127 

industrial addition to the existing building.  The site is currently accessed from existing 128 

entrances on Catamount and Industrial Drives and contains a 2-unit, 20,000 sq. ft. building 129 

previously approved as an Administrative Planned Unit Development.  The units consist of a 130 

19,936 sq. ft. light industrial use and a 64 sq. ft. research and development lab use. The 131 

Applicant proposes no access, lighting, parking or water/wastewater changes to the site.  The 132 

property is described as 32 Catamount Drive; Tax Map 3, Parcel 8-27; SPAN #14541; contains 133 

approximately 3.27 acres; and is located within the General Industrial (I2) Zoning District(s) and 134 

the Catamount Planning Area.  The Applicant has requested waivers (according to Section 135 

803.12 of the Zoning Regulations) from Sections: 803.6 (landscaping plans), 803.7 (building 136 

elevations), and 803.8 (lighting plans). 137 

 138 

Paul Jacques represented the Applicant at the hearing.   139 

 140 

Mr. Jenkins administered the oath to Interested Persons. 141 

 142 

In response to item number: 143 

1. Jacques explained the ownership of the entire property and units and that all parties with 144 

an ownership interest are party to this application. Jacques submitted the deed which 145 

explained RKP transferred the ownership over to PEJ LLC and a letter from RNK 146 

Enterprises approving the application.   147 

2. Jacques agreed that the Final Plans shall include elevations and outdoor lighting. 148 

Jacques explained that they are only moving one light to the back side of the addition.  149 



 

Page 4 of 5 

3. Jacques agreed that the Final Plans shall show the location of all proposed enclosed 150 

outdoor storage as well as all structures. Jacques stated if the e storage container is 151 

kept, he will add it to the Final plans. 152 

4. Jacques agreed that the DRB may determine if the existing landscaping and relocation 153 

of existing landscaping is acceptable.  154 

5. Jacques agreed that if the DRB determines that new landscaping is required as a 155 

percentage of development, the Applicant shall submit a cost schedule for the total 156 

development, but stated that they only propose to move two trees. 157 

6. Jacques agreed that if new landscaping is required, a landscaping surety shall be 158 

required to guarantee the completion of the approved landscaping and will be held to 159 

guarantee survival for a period of three years from installation.  The surety must be 160 

established prior to the issuance of a Zoning Permit, per Zoning Regulations Section 161 

806.3 and the Town’s Policy 98-02 on Landscape Performance Bonds.  The DRB 162 

determined that the surety will only be for the relocated trees.   163 

7. Jacques stated that the proposed relocated landscaping will provide screening for the 164 

dumpster on three sides. 165 

8. Jacques agreed that if the relocated driveway is to be for two-way traffic, the gravel drive 166 

shall be 24-feet.  Jacques stated that he doesn't want two-way traffic. 167 

9. Jacques agreed to show a bicycle parking space in compliance with ZR819 on the Final 168 

Plans.  The bicycle parking space shall be installed prior to receiving a Certificate of 169 

Occupancy/Compliance. 170 

10. Jacques agreed that if a new sign is proposed, a sign permit is required for business 171 

identification signs.  All signs shall be well-maintained in accordance with ZR830.  172 

Jacques stated that they are not proposing a new sign at this time. 173 

11. Jacques agreed to submit 3 full-sized (to scale) and 3 reduced (11 x 17) complete Final 174 

Plan sets depicting the requested changes.  The revised plans must be deemed Final by 175 

the Town Planner prior to being eligible for a Zoning Permit from the Zoning 176 

Administrator.  The Applicant is advised to submit ONE full-sized (to scale) plan set for 177 

Staff review prior to submitting all the copies of the Final Plan sets.   178 

12. Jacques agreed that a Zoning Permit is required and an associated Certificate of 179 

Compliance is required after construction is complete (and prior to occupation/use of the 180 

addition).   181 

13. Jacques agreed that the Town Attorney shall determine if a revised Condominium Plat 182 

and Declaration of Condominium must to be amended due to this proposed amendment. 183 

14. Jacques agreed that if needed, the Applicant shall submit associated legal instruments 184 

for review and approval by the Town Attorney. Only instruments approved by the Town 185 

may be recorded in the Town of Milton Land Records.   186 

15. Jacques agreed to submit $500 to cover the legal review of the deeds and any other 187 

required legal instruments by the Town Attorney.  Any funds not expended on the legal 188 

review will be refunded to the Applicant. 189 

16. Jacques agreed to obtain all required State permits and approvals.   190 

 191 

MOTION by Henry Bonges, SECOND by Clayton Forgan to approve the Site Plan application 192 

for the 3,000 square foot addition, changes to internal circulation, landscaping, relocation of 193 

dumpster located at 32 Catamount Drive and described as SPAN# 13975, 14540, 14541, 194 

14722, Tax Map 3, Parcel 8-27, 8-27-001, 8-27-002, 8-27-003, subject to the conditions 195 

proposed in the Staff Report.  DISCUSSION: None. VOTE: Jenkins: yea; Cole: yea; Forgan; 196 

yea, Mr. Conley: yea; Bonges, yea.  PASSED. 197 

 198 

OTHER BUSINESS  199 

Staff Update  200 



 

Page 5 of 5 

Hemmerick and Pitts went over the Staff Update included in the Memo. 201 

 202 

MINUTES 203 

MOTION by David Conley, SECOND by Clayton Forgan to approve the minutes of June 11, 204 

2015.  DISCUSSION: None.  VOTE: Jenkins: yea; Cole: yea; Conley: yea; Forgan: yea; 205 

Bonges: abstention.  PASSED. 206 

 207 

ENTER DELIBERATIVE SESSION  208 

MOTION by Clayton Forgan, SECOND by Thomas Cole, to enter Deliberative Session at 8:09 209 

p.m. to finalize and review written decisions.  DISCUSSION: None.  VOTE: Jenkins: yea; Cole, 210 

yea; Forgan: yea; Conley: yea. Bonges;   yea. PASSED. 211 

 212 

RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 213 

MOTION by David Conley, SECOND by Clayton Forgan to re-enter Public Session 8:24 p.m.  214 

DISCUSSION: None.  VOTE: Jenkins: yea; Cole: yea; Forgan: yea; Mr. Conley: yea; Bonges, 215 

yea.  PASSED. 216 

 217 

DECISIONS SIGNED 218 

Minor Conventional Subdivision Sketch - 860 East Road - Blondin 219 

Bruce Jenkins, Acting Chair:  yea/nay/abstain/absent/recusal 220 

Thomas Cole, Clerk: yea/nay/abstain/absent/recusal 221 

Clayton Forgan: yea/nay/abstain/absent/recusal 222 

David Conley: yea/nay/abstain/absent/recusal 223 

Vacant, Chair yea/nay/abstain/absent/recusal 224 

 225 

PLATS SIGNED 226 

None. 227 

 228 

ADJOURNMENT 229 

MOTION by Bruce Jenkins SECOND by Henry Bonges to adjourn the meeting at 8:26 p.m. 230 

DISCUSSION: None.  VOTE: Jenkins: yea; Cole; yea; Forgan: yea; Conley: yea; Bonges: yea. 231 

PASSED. 232 

 233 

Respectfully submitted, 234 

 235 

 236 

_________________________    _______________________________  237 

Bruce Jenkins       Jacob Hemmerick 238 

Vice-Chair and Acting Chair    Planning Director 239 

 240 

Date Approved:  ___________________ 241 




